PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1997/ SR 32
25 July 1997

Oiginal: ENGISH

ECONCM C AND SOOI AL COUNCI L
Subst anti ve session of 1997
PROVI SI ONAL  SUMWARY RECORD OF THE 32nd MEETI NG
Held at the Palais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Thursday, 17 July 1997, at 3 p.m
President : M. CGALUSKA (Czech Republic)
later: M. CHOMNDHURY (Bangl adesh)
(Vi ce-President)
CONTENTS
COCRDI NATI ON,  PROGRAMVE AND OTHER QUESTI ONS  ( conti nued)
(h) UNI TED NATI ONS UN VERSI TY
REPCRTS, CONCLUSI ONS AND RECOMMVENDATI ONS CF SUBSI DI ARY BODI ES:
(a) ECONOM C QUESTI ONS

(b) ENVI RONMVENTAL QUESTI ONS

Corrections to this record should be submtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a nenorandum and al so i ncorporated in
a copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this

docunment to the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des
Nat i ons, Ceneva.

GE. 97-63289 (E)



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m
COCRDI NATI ON,  PROGRAMVE AND OTHER QUESTI ONS  ( conti nued)
(h) UNI TED NATI ONS UNI VERSI TY (agenda item 6 (h)) (E 1997/7)
M. GRALINO de SOZA (Rector, United Nations University (UNU)),

i ntroduci ng the 1996 annual report of the Council of the United Nations
Uni versity (E/1997/7), summari zed some of the achi evenents of his 10-year term
of office, which would be conpleted at the end of August 1997. During that
period, the Helsinki-based Wrld Institute for Devel opnent Econom cs
Research (UNU WDER) had been suppl enented by additional research training
centres at Maastricht, Accra, Macau and Tokyo, with financial support fromthe
Governnents of Finland, the Netherlands, CGhana, Zanbia, Portugal, China and
Japan and the Governor of Mcau

In addition to the original Programre for Bi otechnol ogy for
Latin Arerica and the Caribbean at Caracas, two additional research and
trai ning progranmmes had been established: the International Leadership
Acadeny (UNUILA) at Aman and the Internati onal Network on VWater, Environnent
and Health (UNJINWNEH) in Ontario. Those progranmres were supported by the
Governnents of Venezuel a, Jordan and Canada, respectively. An agreenent had
been signed to devel op a Fisheries Training Programme in Iceland, and a d oba
Envi ronment Information Centre (CGEIC) had been inaugurated at UNU headquarters
i n Tokyo.

During the past year and a half, UNU had awarded over 200 fellowships
for advanced training at its associated or cooperating institutions, and
1,538 fell ows had conpl eted such training since the progranmme's creation
in 1976. The UNU press had published or co-published 13 books and sold sone
22,600 copies for a total of US$ 300, 000; another 2,000 books had been
provided at no cost to depository libraries, mainly in devel opi ng countries.

UNU had reorgani zed its work to concentrate on environnmental |y
sust ai nabl e devel opnment, peace, security and governance and, at the request of
the Secretary-Ceneral, was working to strengthen its academ c contri buti ons
and policy inputs in areas of particular inportance to the United Nations.
Recent achi evenments in that area included an agreenment with the United Nations
Educational, Scientific and Qultural O ganization (UNESCO for the

establ i shment of a UNESCO chair in | eadership studies at the Internationa



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 3

Leader shi p Acadeny in Anman, a major contribution to an Intergovernnental
Panel on dimate Change Workshop in March 1997 and a conference on National
Strategi es and Regi onal Cooperation for the twenty-first century, organized in
cooperation with UNESCO the Government of Japan and the Associ ation of
Uni versities of Asia and the Pacific as a preparatory neeting for the Wrld
Conf erence on H gher Education which was to be held at UNESCO headquarters
in 1998.

The nost i nmedi ate chal | enge was the need for increased funding. Wile
many Covernnents, international foundations and fundi ng agenci es had
contri buted generously, some najor countries had yet to make a vol untary
contribution to the UNU Endowrent Fund. Financial constraints had forced the
Uni versity to scale back its connections with research institutions of the
devel oping world. Owing to the appreciation of the Japanese yen, the rate of
return on UNU i nvestnents had effectively reduced by two thirds the funds
avail able for activities at its headquarters.

Anot her problemwas the University's insufficient visibility as a
result of its small core faculty and changing roster of visiting scholars.
Through an increasing nunber of public events related to its programres and
activities, the University hoped to overcone that problem

M. HAYASH (Japan) said that his Government endorsed the

Secretary-CGeneral's Track Two proposal that UNU should be a centre for
think-tanks contributing to the efforts of the future Strategic Planning Unit.

If the University was to shoulder its new responsibilities as a
participant in the Admnistrative Conmttee on Coordination (ACC), it would be
necessary to strengthen its managenent, organi zation and headquarters,
establish a set of basic policies for its organizational structure, provide it
with solid financial base, give its activities higher visibility and foster
better understanding with the contributing Governments. Like other conponents
of the United Nations system the University nmust elin nate unnecessary
adm ni strative expenses in order to naintain public support for its
activities. A conprehensive UNU revi ew should be carried out by an
appropriate body, such as the Joint Inspection Unit (JIU. He requested that

that point be duly noted in the Council's report on the session.



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 4

He hoped that under the | eadership of the new Rector, those issues would
be addressed and a genuine reformprocess initiated. He pledged his
Covernnent's support for the process and urged other nenber States to help
ensure its success.

M. HASSAN (Jordan) said that the UNU I nternational Leadership
Acadeny in Anman was the first branch of the University to be established in
the Mddle East and the first institution in the region whose purpose was to
train future | eaders and build bridges of understanding between them It had
been set up with the help of the United Nations Devel opnent Programme (UNDP),
the Government of Norway and the United Nations Popul ati on Fund (UNFPA).
Its basic principles were the pronotion of denocracy, devel opnent,
institution-building and di spute-resolution with an accent on peace, good
gover nance, the environment, science and technol ogy and devel opnent.

Concepts of security had changed and nmany regi mes had been toppl ed,
maki ng governance and di pl omacy nore conpl ex than before. The Acadeny,
whi ch had undertaken joint activities with several United Nations bodies,
endeavoured to nmake future | eaders aware of the chal |l enges posed by
xenophobi a, extrem smand raci sm Being convinced of the inportance of
strengt heni ng bonds of friendship and understandi ng between future | eaders,
his CGovernnent fully supported the Acadeny and appeal ed for increased support
fromother States.

M. JONSSON (lceland) said that the success of the UNU Geot her mal
Trai ning Programme, established in Iceland in 1979, had encouraged his
CGovernnent to sign a recent agreenent for the establishnent of a Fisheries
Training Programme as part of its effort to pronote sustainable utilization of
renewabl e nmarine resources and to contribute to well-managed and profitable
fisheries sectors in the devel opi ng countries

Ms. BAI Yongjie (China) said that her Government attached great

importance to its relationship with UNU and bel i eved that the University coul d
nmake a contribution to peace and devel opment at a tine when rapid changes in
sci ence and technol ogy required new approaches to research and internati ona
cooperation. The University had the advantage of a cross-cultural and

mul ti di sciplinary approach and a wi de range of experts and areas of research.



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 5

Onng to its nature and limted resources, however, it could not cover
all fields. As part of the reformof the United Nations system UNU should
improve its research nethods, focus nore closely on the human di mensi ons of
envi ronnent and devel opnment and increase the breadth, effectiveness, relevance
and feasibility of its research and training activities.

M. ZIMYANN (Russian Federation) said that his del egation woul d,

in due course, submt a draft resolution proposing that, to pronote further
rationalization of the University's activities, its Annual Report should be
regul arly consi dered by the Second Commttee of the General Assenbly.

M. GURGALINO de SOIZA (United Nations University, (UNU)), having

t hanked the Council for its suggestions concerning the future devel opnent of

the University and promsed to forward the rel evant summary record to his
successor, said that the UNU Council planned to conduct a conprehensive review
of the University's work in 1998. Neverthel ess, despite severe staff
reductions and limted resources, the University's work had expanded duri ng
his termof office. Details of its activities could be found on its Wb page
(http://www unu. edu). Gven that the purpose of UNUwas to assist the
devel opi ng countries, it was to be hoped that nore countries would contribute
to its work.

At the suggestion of M. Chowdhury (Bangl adesh), the Council paid

tribute to the work of the outgoing Rector of the United Nations University

REPCRTS, CONCLUSI ONS AND RECOMMVENDATI ONS CF SUBSI DI ARY BCDI ES (agenda item 7)
(A/52/113-E/ 1997/ 18; E 1997/83; E 1997/L.23 and Add. 1)

(a) ECONCM C QUESTI ONS
(b)  ENVI RONVENTAL QUESTI ONS

(A'S- 19/ 4-E/ 1997/ 13 and Add.1, E/1997/16, A'S 19/ 7-E/ 1997/ 19,

A S 19/ 8-E/ 1997/ 20, E/1997/24, 25, 29, 31, 35 and 52, A/'S- 19/ 14- E 1997/ 60,
E/ 1997/ 61, A 52/181-E 1997/ 77, E/1997/82, 86 and 95; E/ 1997/L.23 and Add. 1,
L. 25 and L. 26)

M. N DOV (Executive Director, United Nations Centre for Human
Settlenments (UNCHS) (Habitat)), introducing the report of the

Secretary-General on the inplenentation of the outcone of the United Nations
Conference on Hunman Settlenments (Habitat 1) (A 52/181-FE 1997/77), said that
the sixteenth session of the Comm ssion on Hurman Settlenents had provided an
opportunity to review the progress nade during the first year of followup to
the Habitat 11 Conference and address sone of the requests nade by the General

Assenbly in its resolution 51/177. The report outlined actions taken to



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 6

strengthen the Conmission's nmandate and examne its working nethods within the
framework of the need for a systemw de approach to follow up and

i npl enentation and actions taken by the Secretariat and the Conm ssion to
strengthen the United Nations Centre for Human Settlements (UNCHS) (Habitat)
in view of its expanded responsibilities.

It summarized the Commission's recomrendations to the Ceneral Assenbly
speci al session on review and apprai sal of the inplenmentati on of Agenda 21 and
the role of properly planned and nmanaged human settlenment in achieving
sust ai nabl e devel opment and suggested neasures to pronote inplenentati on of
the Habitat Agenda by the United Nations system the Bretton Wods
institutions and their intergovernnental nachineries.

It also outlined the structure and work programmes of the Conm ssion and
the Centre until the year 2001 and highlighted the questions of internationa
cooperation, international devel opnent assistance and inter-agency
coordination in inplementati on of the Habitat Agenda. Lastly, it stressed
the need for significantly increased, stable, adequate and predictabl e funding
by Governments and the international community.

M. KHAN (Division for Policy Coordinati on and Econom c and Soci al
Council Affairs), introducing the report of the Secretary-CGeneral on consuner
protection (E/ 1997/61), recalled that the United Nations guidelines for
consuner protection represented an internationally accepted regul atory
framework designed to serve as a nodel for national |egislation. The
gui delines had recently acquired new significance in the |ight of
gl obal i zati on and the inportance of sustainabl e devel opnment. Consuners nust
be assured of the quality of services and products in all sectors of economc
activity, and have the possibility of redress.

Thanks to effective collaboration with non-governnental organizations
(N&s) such as Consuner International, the United Nati ons had managed to
i npl erent a hi ghly successful and anbitious global programme in the field of
consuner protection, despite very limted resources. Recent conferences in
Africa and Asia had led to the devel opment of nodel |aws and networks of
consuner groups, with direct inpact on people’ s lives.

The Council was asked to approve the recomrendati ons contained in the

report, in particular that an interregi onal expert group neeting be convened



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 7

to el aborate reconmendations for guidelines on sustainable consunption
patterns for submssion to the Council at its substantive session in 1998
t hrough the Commi ssion for Sustainabl e Devel oprent.
Ms. LABONNE (Director, D vision for Econom c and Socia

Devel opment and Natural Resources Managenent) introducing the
Secretary-CGeneral's reports on the Fourteenth United Nations Regi ona
Cart ographi c Conference for Asia and the Pacific (E/ 1997/52) and the Sixth
Uni ted Nations Regi onal Cartographic Conference for the Americas (E 1997/82),
said that, although both conferences had attracted partici pants from ot her
regions, their main function was regional. They were regarded as inval uabl e
foruns for technical cooperation, technology transfer, the exchange of
experi ence and the coordinati on of programmes. Covernnent officials, planners
and national decision makers, together with the scientific and academ c
communities and the private sector, took the opportunity to describe their
wor k, conpare the results obtained and programme their future activities. The
conferences al so enabl ed the agencies of the United Nations systemto direct
their programes of work nore effectively.

The topics taken up at the two conferences related above all to
devel opnent policy. Information and data had been exchanged on the
institutional and | egal franmework and the econom c and technical context,
with a viewto facilitating, nodernizing and inproving the work of nationa
cartographi c agencies at the national and local level, with particular
reference to the inplenentati on of Agenda 21 and the followup to the
i npl enentation of multinational environmental agreenents (MEAS).

The Regional Conference for Asia and the Pacific had nade two
recommendations to the Council: that a Fifteenth Regi onal Cartographic
Conf erence shoul d be convened for five working days in the year 2000 and t hat
the Council should request the Secretary-CGeneral, within the limts of
avai |l abl e resources, to ensure that the United Nati ons system continued to
support cartographic activities in the region and to facilitate the
participation of the | east devel oped countries and small island devel opi ng
States in those activities.

The Sixth United Nations Regional Cartographic Conference for the
Anericas had recommended to the Council that a Seventh Regional Cartographic

Conf erence shoul d be convened for five working days in the year 2001 and that



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 8

the Council should request the Secretary-General to engage in a dialogue with
the nenber countries of the region and other interested parties with a viewto
the inplenentation of the Conference's other resolutions, including the
establ i shnment of a special working group.

M. VOSSENAAR (United Nations Conference on Trade and Devel opnent

(UNCTAD) ), introducing the report on trade and the environnent prepared by the
UNCTAD secretariat (A S-19/4-E 1997/13), said that it exam ned the significant
progress nade in recent intergovernnmental deliberations on trade and
environnent within the World Trade O gani zation (WO (particularly the
Committee on Trade and Environnent (CTE)), UNCTAD, the Conm ssion on

Sust ai nabl e Devel opnent, the Organi zati on for Econom ¢ Cooperati on and

Devel opment (CECD) and the United Nations Environnent Progranmme (UNEP).

Fol | owi ng the United Nations Conference on Environnent and Devel opnent
(UNCED), conceptual and enpirical work had nanaged to allay some of the fears
that trade liberalization and econoni c devel oprment were inconpatible with
environnental protection. Mitual understanding and consensus between trade,
envi ronnent and devel opnent communities was still only beginning to evol ve but
t he post- UNCED debate had strengthened confidence in the ability of the
multilateral trading systemto respond to the objectives both of environmental
protecti on and sust ai nabl e devel oprent.

The report al so provided a detailed exam nati on of a range of issues
i ncl udi ng environmental policy and conpetitiveness and nultilateral
envi ronnental agreenents, identifying outstandi ng i ssues such as
environnental |y sound technol ogi es and products, small and medi um si zed
enterprises, and environmental costs and resource scarcities in comodity
prices. It had been nade available to the appropriate bodies and its
recommendati ons were being reflected in the further inplenentation of
Agenda 21.

Ms. BOBBITT (Departnent for Devel opnent Support and Managenent
Services), introducing the Secretary-CGeneral's report on the Thirteenth
Meeting of the Group of Experts on the United Nations Progranme in Public
Adm ni stration and Finance (E/ 1997/86), said that it set out the main
concl usi ons and reconmendati ons of the Meeting of Experts, which had expl ored
current issues of governance, public adm nistration and finance and revi ened

the United Nations work programme in those areas in the light of the



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 9

chal l enges in CGeneral Assenbly resolution 50/225. The Secretary-Ceneral's
comments on the Experts' recommendati ons were to be found in paragraphs 73
to 75. In response to one such reconmmendati on, the Secretary-CGeneral had nade
arrangenents for the Fourteenth Meeting of the Group of Experts to be convened
in May 1998.

M. Chowdhury (Bangl adesh). Vice-President, took the Chair

M. TORRES (Argentina) said that the docunent on trade and

environnental matters prepared by the UNCTAD secretariat (A S 19/4-E 1997/ 13)

did not properly reflect the inportance of the work done by the WIO Comm ttee
on Trade and Environnent (CTE). The fact that the report on that Commttee's
first two years of work had not suggested any anendnent to the rules of the
multilateral trading systemdid not nmean that no progress had been nade in
rendering the objectives of trade liberalization and greater environnenta
protection conpatible. A nunber of positive features were indicated in that
report. Although a CTE report did not institute any contractual obligations,
such a report could, in the case of a dispute, be useful as reflecting a
consensus by the States parties on a particular issue.

Wth regard to conpetitiveness and environnmental protection standards,
the report stated that CGovernnents had undertaken not to introduce
countervailing duties or other trade nmeasures to offset any real or perceived
adverse effects fromthe application of environmental policies. It had al so
been recogni zed that it would be “inappropriate” for Governments to rel ax
nati onal environmental standards and their observance with a viewto greater
conpetitiveness. Both statenents were highly inportant: the first to prevent
the exportation of environnmental standards under the threat of trade
sanctions, and the second, to prevent the non-application of |ocal standards
bei ng used as a tool for gaining trade advant age.

In respect of the link between the miultilateral trading system and
multilateral environnental agreenents (MEAs), the Conmmittee recogni zed that
trade nmeasures adopted within the framework of the MEAs could find
accommodation within the provisions of article XX of the General Agreenent on
Tariffs and Trade (GATT). That article established the conditions under which
States nenbers coul d adopt certain exceptional mneasures, for exanple those
necessary to protect the life and health of persons, even if, in order to do
so, they nust depart fromthe general principles of the nmultilateral trading

system



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 10

That recognition left two inportant questions to be settled. It
accepted that protection of the environment was included anmong the exceptions
permtted by article XX and it accepted that the environnental good to be
protected by an exceptional measure could be outside the national territory of
the State menber applying the measure (such as the ozone | ayer, the
at nosphere, fishing on the high seas, etc.). Wile that should not be
interpreted as rendering it possible to apply neasures that fell within the
jurisdiction of other nenber States, it did inply the right to protect an
envi ronnental good that was not exclusively contained within the nationa
frontiers of the State applying the neasure.

Thus, by taking up some of the principles of the Ro Declaration, the
report virtually incorporated theminto the nultilateral tradi ng system and
consequently, strengthened the Declaration. The report assimlated trade
neasures adopted within the framework of MEAs to the so-called “positive
neasures”, such as financial and technical cooperation, transfer of technol ogy
and so on, contenplated in the Declaration, that mght be essential to enable
t he devel oping countries to conply with the provisions of the environnenta
agr eement s.

Anot her particularly sensitive topic was that of the relationship
bet ween the WO di spute-settl enent systemand the systens set out in the MEAs.
There was no hierarchical relationship between the two types of agreenent, nor
was there any judicial authority to resol ve possible conflicts between the
two. That could nean that, in a dispute between two countries both of which
were signatories to both agreenents about trade neasures applied under an MEA
each party to the dispute could opt for one or other settlement system as
bei ng best suited to its particular situation. In that connection, the
CTE report took the viewthat, in the case of disputes relating to obligations
assuned under MEAs, an attenpt should be nade to settle themthrough recourse
to the machi nery of the MEA concerned.

A third inportant topic was eco-labelling. The point at issue there was
whet her di scrimnati on anong products through that kind of certification was
or was not in conformty with the rules of the nmultilateral trading system

There had been no agreenent on the matter, but the CTE recommended conpliance



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 11

with the rules set out in the Code of Good Practice of the Technical Barriers
to Trade Agreenent (TBT) and recogni zed the need for greater transparency in
the preparati on, adoption and use of eco-I abels.

A fourth inportant itemwas the relationship between subsidies and the
environnent. That was a highly inportant natter as far as enhancing the
synergy between environnmental protection policies and international trade was
concerned. Trade |iberalization was no guarantee of greater environnenta
protection, especially when the prices of the goods concerned did not reflect
the real cost of production. Subsidies, clearly had a distorting effect on
international prices. For a policy of sustainable production to be effective,
the price of goods nust reflect both the private cost of production and the
environnental externalities generated in their production, distribution,
consunption and di sposal

That criterion, known as the “internalization of environnental costs”
was internationally recognized in the R o Declaration. Environnental costs
must not be taken out of that context. For prices to reflect the
environnental cost of production, it was essential that those costs should
first reflect the private cost of production. Sone devel oped countries seened
inclined to forget that. |If prices were distorted by government subsi dies,
there could be no question of adding to themthe environnmental costs of
producti on.

A fourth topic was products that were prohibited domestically. There
had been nmuch debate on that subject in GATT with a viewto the adoption of an
agreenent to regulate the international trade in such products. The CTE was
continuing that work, and had asked the WO secretariat to create a database
of information on environmental neasures restricting or prohibiting the
donestic sale of products in that category. He had thus been surprised to
di scover that the Department for Policy Coordination and Sustai nabl e
Devel opment of the United Nations Secretariat was engaged in drawing up a
“Consol i dated List of Products Wiose Consunption and/or Sal e Have Been Banned,
Wt hdrawn, Severely Restricted or not Approved by Governnents” (E 1997/61
para. 27). The fact that no nention had been nade of that List in the
CTE di scussions seened to be a glaring exanple of a | ack of coordination

Ms. CASSAM (UWnited Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural
QO gani zation (UNESCO) said that UNESCO s activities to inplenment the outcone

of Habitat Il took place within the framework of a programre of nanagenent of



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 12

social transformation and capacity-buil ding known as MXST. The activities
included an interdisciplinary project, entitled “Gties, nanagenent of socia
transformati on and environnent”, designed to fight urban poverty, support
wonen' s activities and upgrade and protect the environnment. The project,

whi ch was being inpl emented by the UNESCO regi onal offices, with the hel p of
NGOs and bil ateral cooperation, was taking place in three cities, in the
Cari bbean, Africa and Latin Aneri ca.

Anot her project, entitled “Uban devel opment and water resources” was
being inplenented jointly, in another three cities, by the UNESCO soci a
devel opnent and science sections. Its ains included the upgradi ng of housing
and the protection of historic waterfronts, as well as support for traditiona
activities and raising public awareness of the inportance of natural-resource
managenent .

A third project was concerned with revitalizing the social and urban
fabric of inner city areas. Its ains included a canpai gn agai nst poverty and
excl usion, support for traditional activities and upgradi ng of the poorest
housi ng. That project was currently taking place in the cities of Quito, Lina
and Tunis. A further related project, to be inplenented in 1998/ 99 woul d be
aimed at enhancing the university teaching and training of city professiona
staff.

M. YAMPA SKI (Cbserver for Wkraine) wel comed the report on trade

and environmental matters (A S-19/4-E 1997/13), particularly those parts of it
dealing with the progress nmade in |inking sustainabl e devel oprent and
environnental | y safe produce with trade.
kr ai ne was undergoi ng far-reaching economc transition, and foreign
i nvestnent and cooperation was vital for its market reforns and the resol ution
of its environmental problens, nany of which were transnational in character
Despite the difficult environnental |egacy left by a Soviet Union which
had treated natural resources as if they were inexhaustible, Wkraine had
ratified over 20 environmental conventions and was endeavouring to neet its
international commtnents under them including those to reduce air pollution
and to limt the production and utilization of ozone-depl eting substances.
The new Constitution, adopted in June 1996, had enabl ed national |egislation
to be brought into line with international standards, including nany

pertaining to the environment.



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 13

H s del egation urged the menbers of the Council to support, at the
forthcom ng session of the General Assenbly, the initiative of the President
of Wkraine on the need for international |egislation to guarantee gl oba
environnental security. Such |egislation would define adm ssible standards
for the environnental behaviour of each country, in the interests of the
survival and well-being of all mankind in the com ng century.

To increase environmental safety in Europe, his Government had deci ded
to close down the remaining Chernobyl reactors by the year 2000. It hoped
that the G7 countries would nmeet their commtnrents under the rel evant
nmenor andum and assi st Wkraine in that regard.

H s del egation expressed its appreciation to the United Nations Specia
M ssi on whi ch had studied the consequences in Wkraine, Belarus and the
Russi an Federation of the Chernobyl accident. 1t was to be hoped that the
results of the M ssion would receive active support at the United Nations
Conference on Chernobyl to be held later in the current year and that the
necessary financial resources for dealing with the aftermath of the accident
woul d be rmade avail abl e by donor countri es.

Ms. BA Yongjie (China) said that the report of

t he Comm ssi on on Sustai nabl e Devel opnent on its fifth session had provi ded
sone input to the final document of the General Assenbly's N neteenth Specia
Session setting out the guidelines and operational franmework for the further
i npl enentati on of Agenda 21. Those guidelines shoul d be inplenented
faithfully and in a bal anced way.

The UNCTAD secretariat's report on trade and environmental natters
(A S 19/ 4-E 1997/ 13) acknow edged that the relationship between trade and the
envi ronnent was nore conplicated than had been anticipated. Further studies
were needed of their interrelationship and of the policy issues concerned.
The report did, however, contain a nunber of useful suggestions which were
worth expl oring.

Envi ronment and trade nust be nutual |y supportive. For nmany devel opi ng
countries, economc growh was the only way of eradicating poverty and
achi evi ng sustai nabl e devel opnent. Bias towards environnental factors on the
part of the devel oped countries and recourse to restrictive trade nmeasures had
an adverse effect on devel oping country exports and, in the |ast analysis,

weakened their ability to protect the environnent. The needs and situation of



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 14

t he devel opi ng countries should be taken fully into account, both in
theoretical studies of the relationship between trade and environment and in
pol i cy-meki ng, and the capacity of the devel oping countries to protect the
envi ronnent shoul d be assisted by neans, inter alia, of technology transfer

At its Nineteenth Special Session, the General Assenbly had included the
environnent and trade relationship issue in the nmulti-year action plan for the
Conmi ssi on on Sustai nabl e Devel opment. Her del egati on hoped that, in any
future exploration of the issues involved, the common but differentiated
responsibilities of the devel oped and devel opi ng countries woul d be borne in
m nd.

M. ZIMYANLN (Russian Federation) said that the Conm ssion on

Sust ai nabl e Devel opnent was to be comrended for identifying inportant globa
chal | enges such as the need to strengthen international |egislation and
programres to protect the marine and ocean environnments, pronote efficient use
of energy, ensure the safe disposal of toxic waste, restrict organic

pol | utants and enhance the environnental |y sound devel oprment of transport
systens and the sustainable use of forests. It was time, however, for
practical action.

The I ntergovernnental Forumon Forests shoul d be established as soon as
possible, preferably so that the first substantive session could be held in
early 1998. H's delegation supported the Comm ssion's efforts to study the
effect of information technol ogy on devel opnent and to alert the internationa
community to the inportance of sustainable energy systens.

Regar di ng popul ati on and devel opnent, his del egati on supported the
Comm ssion’s intention to study the inplications of international mgratory
novenents. There should be a concerted followup to Habitat Il. The role of
UNEP shoul d be strengthened, but duplication with the Comm ssion nust be
avoi ded.

H s del egation endorsed the preparation of a new format for the
Uni ted Nations Recommendations on the Transport of Dangerous Goods ai ned at
standardi zing the regulations for all types of transport, including marine
transport.

Ef f ecti ve governance was crucial to national, social and economc
progress, social justice, denocracy, respect for human rights and the contro

of corruption. H's delegation thus supported efforts nade to inpl enent



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 15

Ceneral Assenbly resolution 50/225, particularly regarding infornation
di ssem nation, exchange of experience, training and technical collaboration.
UNDP was to be commended on the val uabl e assistance it had rendered in that
regard

Dr. KAFERSTEIN (Wrld Health Organization (WHO) said that WHO

continued to work with the Food and Agriculture O ganization of the

United Nations (FAO, within the framework of the Codex A inmentarius

Conmi ssion, to devel op food standards, guidelines and recomrendations regarded
by WIO as internati onal benchrmarks for national requirenents. Food produced
according to the standards of the Codex Codes of Hygi ene and Practice were
safe, nutritious and of fered adequate health protection, whereas stricter
standards, which did not necessarily offer better health protection, could be
used as non-tariff barriers to trade.

Through expert committees and consultations with other bodies, WHO
continued its practice of risk assessment in relation to food additives,
pesticide and veterinary drug residues, and nicrobiol ogi cal and other hazards,
and made recomrendations to Governments and consumers on protective nmeasures
agai nst such hazards. Conplenenting its activities in consunmer protection,
WHO had publ i shed a nunber of reports, papers, public infornation nmaterial and
ot her docurments dealing specifically with food safety. Furthernore, at the
request of the Codex Alimentarius Comm ssion, the Codex secretariat, in
consul tation w th independent, non-governnental consuners' organizations, was
preparing a paper on enhancing the role of such organizations in the Codex
process.

WHO was actively involved in the pronotion of community water supplies
and sanitation facilities, and in collaboration with the Codex Ainentarius
Conmi ssion, was devel opi ng a standard for packaged waters other than natura
m neral waters.

WHO work in the area of pharmaceuticals had a direct inpact on inproved
safety, quality and efficiency of pharnaceutical and biol ogi cal products,

i ncl udi ng vacci nes. dobally applicable standards and gui del i nes were bei ng
fornul ated through the Expert Conmm ttees on Pharnaceutical Specifications, on

Bi ol ogi cal s, and on the Use of Essential Drugs. In that regard, he nentioned



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 16

the series of publications, schenmes and programes devel oped by WHO
particuarly with regard to certification, drug nonitoring, and nanufacturing
and clinical practices.

M. HAYASH (Japan) said he wel coned the reforns proposed by the
United Nations Centre for Human Settlements and supported the proposal that a
task force be established to exam ne the restructuring invol ved.

H s Covernnent recogni zed the inportance of United Nations cartographic
activities and drew the Council's attention to the contribution of the
Japanese Ceographical Survey Institute and the United States Government in
that field.

Wth respect to the issue of good governance, he commended the recent
wor k conducted by the expert group and called for a nmore action-oriented
approach. In that regard, he fully endorsed the views expressed by the
representative of the Russian Federati on.

He expressed appreciation for the report of the Secretary-GCGeneral on
consuner protection (E/ 1997/61) and the remarks nade by the representative
of WHO on the guidelines for consumer protection. H s del egation would becone
a sponsor of the draft resolution on consuner protection initiated by the
Chi | ean del egati on.

M. TORRES (Argentina) said, with reference to the letter fromthe
Per manent Representative of the Republic of Korea to the United Nations
addressed to the Secretary-Ceneral (A S 19/8-E 1997/20) expressing his
CGovernnent's concern to “strengthen the current international reginme
control l'ing the transboundary novenent of radioactive waste”, that his own and
many other countries shared that concern and believed it necessary to increase
i nternational cooperation and coordination in that area. Such cooperation
shoul d i ncl ude safeguards to ensure there was no contam nati on of the marine
envi ronnent, exchange of infornation on selected routes, the obligation to
communi cate to coastal States contingency plans in case of disaster, the
coommtnent to collect radioactive waste in the event of accidents involving
transport vessels and the paynment of conpensati on for danage.

H s del egation wel coned the conprehensive report on the work of the
Conmittee of Experts on the Transport of Dangerous Goods in the 1995-1996
bi enni um (E/ 1997/16). H's Covernnent fully supported the proposal by the
Secretary-Ceneral of the International Maritime O ganization (IM) (para. 17),



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 17

that the publication cycle of the Reconmendati ons be expanded from every
second year to every fourth year. The objective of that proposal was to avoid
constant changes and possi bl e confusion for users and the conpetent
authorities. The issue of the periodicity of amendnents woul d al so have
financial inplications, particularly with respect to the printing and
di stribution of new regul ati ons whi ch represented excessive costs for
Argentina and other countries in the current climate of cuts in public
spendi ng.

M. PRENDERGAST (Jammica) noted the report of the Comm ssion on

Sci ence and Technol ogy for Devel opment on its third session (E 1997/31) and
paid tribute to the Conm ssion's work in inproving understandi ng of science
and technol ogy policies. The substantive theme and focus of the work of the
Conmi ssion during the inter-sessional period 1997-1999, namely, “Science and

t echnol ogy partnershi ps and networking for national capacity-building”, was of
particul ar rel evance to many devel opi ng countri es.

H s del egation recogni zed the inportance of continued cooperation
bet ween the Conm ssion and UNCTAD on sci ence, technol ogy and innovation policy
reviews and hoped that future discussions on reformwoul d highlight the
par anmount i nportance of the Conmi ssion.

Ms. HURTADO (Consuners International) said that privatization
deregul ati on and gl obal i zati on had enhanced the need for strong consumer
protecti on neasures, especially in countries where access to basic needs was
[imted, health and safety neasures weak, market conditions |acking, consuners
did not have the benefit of consuner education, and Governnents were
struggling to enforce protective legislation. The United Nations guidelines
for consuner protection were thus invaluable, although their inplenentation
varied fromcountry to country.

The forenost objective of consumer policy in the devel oping countries
was the satisfaction of subsistence needs and the protection of health.
Consuner policy al so pronoted econom ¢ devel opment by encour agi ng
manuf acturers, retailers and consunmers to act responsibly, and by enabling al
peopl e to be heard, educated and obtain justice. The testing of products by

consuner organi zations and other procedures relating to price and quality



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 18

control helped to elimnate narket deficiencies and inprove quality,
efficiency and accountability, thus inmproving conditions for economc
devel opnent .

In recent years, her organization had sponsored najor conferences in
Africa, Asia and the Pacific, and Latin America to assess the inplenmentation
of United Nations guidelines and their extension into new areas, as proposed
by Council resolution 1995/53. Moreover, in response to a request by the
Conmi ssi on on Sustai nabl e Devel opment, her organi zati on had prepared a
prelimnary text of new guidelines on sustai nabl e consunption patterns.

The decision to extend the Quidelines had been greeted wi th nuch
ent husi asm by consuner organi zations in view of the global trend to deregul ate
and privatize public utilities, the globalization of financial narkets and
trade liberalization, cross-border selling and advertising, the advent of the
Internet and related i ssues. Such organi zati ons woul d be greatly encouraged
if the Council were to adopt a resolution enphasi zing the need for intensified
national and international efforts in the area of consuner protection and
taking practical steps to extend the United Nations guidelines.

Her organization thus supported the recomrendation in the
Secretary-GCGeneral's report on consumer protection (E 1997/61) that an
i nterregi onal expert group neeting be held to el aborate reconmendations for
gui del i nes on sustai nabl e consunption patterns for subm ssion to the Council,
at its 1998 session, through the Conm ssion on Sustai nabl e Devel opnent.

M. HWANG Yong Shik (Republic of Korea) said he wished to

hi ghlight two particular inplenentation programres adopted by the
Ceneral Assenbly at its recent special session, nanely, the transfer of
publicl y-owned environnental |y sound technol ogy, and the environnmental |y sound
managenent of radi oactive wastes. Wth respect to the former, it would be
recalled that his Government had offered to finance a feasibility study
i ncl udi ng the conpilation of country case studies and a | egal review of a
nunber of devel oped and devel opi ng countries. That feasibility study was well
under way and woul d be conpl eted by the end of 1997, subsequent to which his
Covernnent woul d host an inter-sessional expert neeting, in February 1998, to
review the report of the study.

As for the issue of the environnmentally sound nanagenent of radioactive

waste, he wel comed the inclusion of a very conprehensive set of conponents in



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 19

the outcome of the special session, dealing with transboundary novenents of
waste, their disposal, storage and transportation, and the prohibition of
export of such waste material to countries which did not have appropriate
waste treatnent and storage facilities.
H s del egation | ooked forward to the early establishment of

i nternational and regional nechanisns for the sound nmanagenent of radioactive
wast e and expected that the Programme for Further Inplenentation of Agenda 21,
adopted at the special session of the General Assenbly, would provide a strong
and sound basis for sustainable devel opnent at the national and global |evels.

M. N DOV (Executive Director, United Nations Centre for Human
Settlenments (UNCHS) (Habitat)) said, inreply to the statement by the
representative of the Russian Federation, that he could rest assured that
UNCHS was comm tted to devel opment in the countries with economes in various
stages of transition, and intended to pursue its activities in the Central and
East ern European region.

Ref erence had been nmade to the need for UNCHS to intensify its

i nvol venent in the task forces. He noted that comment and the further
comrents on the periodicity of the work of the Conmm ssion on Human Settl enents
and the prevailing sentinment that the biennial cycle should be naintained. He
hoped that the reforns recently proposed by the Secretary-General would place
the Centre and the Comm ssion on a secure footing.

M. VOSSENAAR (United Nations Conference on Trade and Devel opnent

(UNCTAD)) said, with reference to the comment by the representative

of Argentina that the report on trade and environmental matters
(AS19/4-E 1997/ 13), mght not have fully reflected the inportant work

of the WIO Comm ttee on Trade and Environnent (CTE), that General Assenbly
resol uti on 50/ 95 requested UNCTAD and WIOto report to the General Assenbly
and the Council on progress in the area of trade and the environnent.

The WO secretariat had submtted a full report by CTE to the Comm ssion on
Sust ai nabl e Devel opnent at its fifth session and to the recent special session
of the General Assenbly. In preparing its report, UNCTAD had worked cl osely
with the WO and out goi ng Chai rman of CTE. The report was designed to reflect
the progress nade in trade and the environment and create better understanding

of the relationships involved and a nore informed environment for discussion



E/ 1997/ SR 32
page 20

Through the nanagenent systemwi thin the Comm ssion for Sustainable
Devel opment, UNCTAD, in its capacity as task nanager, had been worki ng very
closely with the WO secretariat, and the secretariats of other bodies on
issues relating to trade and the environment. Wth respect to the particul ar
exanpl e cited by the representative of Argentina concerning domestically
prohi bi ted goods, he pointed out that UNCTAD had reported on that issue to the
Conmi ssi on on Sustai nabl e Devel opment at its fourth session. He referred the
representative of Argentina to parts of the report which woul d provide him

with further infornmation.

The neeting rose at 6.05 p. m




